

5/24/2012

Page 1

CITY OF DETROIT
BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

PAGE 1 TO 39

Taken at 1300 Beaubien Street, Room 328-A
Detroit, Michigan,
Commencing at 3:10 p.m.,
Thursday, May 24, 2012,
Before Wendy A. Boer, CSR 3505.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

APPEARANCES:

MR. DONNELL R. WHITE, CHAIRPERSON

MR. JEROME WARFIELD, COMMISSIONER

MS. JESSICA TAYLOR, COMMISSIONER

MR. TONEY STEWART, COMMISSIONER

MR. CHESTER LOGAN, ASSISTANT CHIEF OF POLICE

MR. GEORGE ANTHONY, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 Thursday, May 24, 2012
3 About 3:10 p.m.

4 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We say good afternoon to
5 everyone and welcome to the Board of Police
6 Commissioners meeting dated for Thursday, May the 24th,
7 2012. For the record, my name is Commissioner Donnell
8 White. I have the pleasure of serving as chair person
9 for the Board of Police Commissioners. Today I am
10 joined with my colleagues to my left and your right
11 Commissioner Toney Stewart, vice chair to the Board. To
12 my right and your left, Commissioner Jerome Warfield and
13 Commissioner Jessica Taylor. Representing the staff of
14 the Board of Police Commissioners is Mr. George Anthony,
15 executive secretary to the Board. Mr. Secretary, can
16 you please introduce our staff?

17 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, sir. George
18 Anthony, secretary to the Board. For the record,
19 present we have Ms. Celia Banks Washington who is our
20 attorney to the board. We have Lieutenant Rodney
21 Sizemore who is representing the human resource bureau.
22 We also have Mr. Robert Brown who is our office manager.
23 We have Miss Wendy Boer from Hanson Court Reporting
24 Service and Sergeant Alan Quinn who is also recording
25 our proceedings. And that concludes the introductions,

1 sir.

2 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Secretary.
3 Representing the Office of the Chief is Assistant Chief
4 Chester Logan. Thank you for being with us AC Logan.

5 ASSISTANT CHIEF LOGAN: Thank you.

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: And at this time I don't
7 believe we have a chaplain with us. But I do note the
8 presence of Commissioner Jim Holley, Reverend Jim
9 Holley. Pastor, would you mind leading us in an
10 invocation for our meeting, sir? It would be an honor.

11 REVEREND HOLLEY: May we pray. Lord, we are
12 so thankful and so grateful for this day, so grateful
13 for this beautiful day that you have sent our way. And
14 we give you the glory and the praise and ask indeed that
15 your presence will indeed be with us and empower us that
16 we might be in the right vein, father, of your people.
17 Bless this Board, bless the officers that they serves,
18 especially the City of Detroit. For that we give you
19 the glory and the praise. In your name, amen.

20 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Reverend. Sir,
21 good to see you again. At this time, before us is a
22 motion for the approval of the agenda for Thursday, May
23 24, 2012.

24 MR. STEWART: So moved.

25 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Support.

1 CHAIRMAN WHITE: It's been properly moved and
2 supported. Any discussion? Colleagues, I would make a
3 recommendation for the purpose of the agenda in timing
4 that the closed sessions be moved forward in the agenda
5 and that we postpone the Office of the Chief of Police
6 presentation on forfeiture. So, with the motion that
7 was passed and supported, if that amendment could be
8 added.

9 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: That's fine.

10 COMMISSIONER STEWART: So moved.

11 CHAIRMAN WHITE: All those in favor say aye.

12 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

13 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed? Thank you very
14 much. Before us is the approval of the minutes dated
15 for Thursday, May 9, 2012, a special meeting.

16 COMMISSIONER STEWART: So moved.

17 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

18 CHAIRMAN WHITE: It's been properly moved and
19 supported. Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in
20 favor?

21 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

22 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed? Thank you. Minutes
23 for Thursday May 10, 2012.

24 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: So moved.

25 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Second.

1 CHAIRMAN WHITE: It's been properly moved and
2 supported. Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in
3 favor?

4 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

5 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed? Thank you very
6 much. There is no formal chairperson's report today.
7 Mr. Secretary, for your report?

8 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We
9 have two requests for closed door sessions, suspension
10 without pay recommendations from the Chief. The first
11 involves Police Officer Jeremy Chekosky,
12 C-h-e-k-o-s-k-y, Badge 2611. And the second is Police
13 Officer -- I'll spell it -- M-a-s-h-a-r-i-k-i, Jackson,
14 Badge 837. That's through their attorney, John
15 Goldpaugh, DPOA Attorney John Goldpaugh. That concludes
16 my report.

17 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Secretary.
18 For the record, those are both closed sessions?

19 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Those are both closed
20 sessions.

21 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, sir. We are going
22 to try -- I know it's a beautiful day and everybody is
23 excited to get back outside. So, my colleagues have
24 urged that we would hear our oral communications so that
25 you wouldn't have to sit through our deliberations in

1 closed session. At this time, we will open up the
2 floor. There's no new business or old business before
3 us. And at this time we will have our oral
4 communications from the audience. So if you would like
5 to address the Board of Police Commissioners, we would
6 was ask that you would come forward. For the purpose of
7 the record, please spell and state your last name, your
8 first and last name for the record and be mindful of the
9 two-minute allotted time period. Are there any
10 communications?

11 MR. DiPONIO: Good afternoon. My name is
12 Steven DiPonio. That is Steven with a V, D-i-P-o-n-i-o.
13 And I live at (off the record).

14 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We'll be happy to get that
15 address from you. We just don't want it on the record.

16 MR. DiPONIO: I'm here because of drug dealing
17 in Corktown that's been going on since 2006, the
18 beginning of 2006 that I have been trying to work with
19 Central District and with the Wayne County Sheriff's
20 Department. And I haven't gotten anywhere in Central
21 District. I have a year and a half worth of
22 surveillance photos that I've personally taken on my
23 laptop. And I have got three other copies that I have
24 got in safe places including one copy with my attorney.
25 I need to talk to somebody about this and get this

1 rectified.

2 I spoke -- there was a bust last week or the
3 week before on Wednesday evening down at the Greyhound
4 bus station. I stopped because they were finishing it
5 up. There was a canine unit in there. There was a
6 suspect in a police van there. And I got the number of
7 an Officer Moore. I've got his phone number. I was
8 supposed to set up a meeting with him. At the last
9 minute he canceled. He called me back the next night.
10 And on the subsequent phone calls that I have made, he's
11 not called me back. And I'm willing to give you my cell
12 phone number or cell phone records so that you can show
13 the calls that I have made and the calls I have not
14 received.

15 This includes with Central District, with
16 every single one of the community relations officers
17 over there over the years. And he will attest because
18 he's been at the Corktown meetings that I have gotten up
19 and I have vocalized these concerns at multiple
20 locations. I have six years worth of watching. And I
21 got lots of information. I know who is doing it, and I
22 am willing to sit down and get this taken care of.
23 Thank you.

24 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. DiPonio, for
25 your involvement in the community. And I'm certain,

1 Assistant Chief, that we can get someone with
2 Mr. DiPonio today, that he might speak with them on this
3 issue.

4 ASSISTANT CHIEF LOGAN: Yes, sir. Through the
5 Chair, Assistant chief Logan. I would ask that DC Ben
6 Lee if you would get with Mr. DiPonio and get the
7 information. And once we act on it, I will get back to
8 the Board.

9 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Mr. DiPonio, DC Lee is
10 standing in the rear corner there if you would see him
11 following the meeting. Good afternoon.

12 MS. SEMMA: Good afternoon. Julie Semma from
13 70's towing. I just want to know what the status was as
14 far as the rules and when they are going to get
15 published and finalized. We haven't heard anything back
16 from anybody. So I'm just wondering what the status
17 was.

18 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Is that the last one?

19 MS. SEMMA: Yes, one and only.

20 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We are still in deliberations
21 over what has been provided to us. So once the
22 Commissioners are comfortable that they don't have any
23 additions and have reviewed all of the recommendations
24 that were provided to us via the public comment portion
25 of our hearing that was held, we will in this body make

1 a recommendation for a meeting to be held to finalize
2 that process.

3 MS. SEMMA: Didn't we have a deadline that we
4 had to have certain things from you guys, and you had a
5 deadline? You guys had put a date on already, and that
6 was like a month or two ago?

7 CHAIRMAN WHITE: No. The deadline was for all
8 the meetings that has transpired prior to this portion.

9 MS. SEMMA: From my recollection, there was a
10 date -- and correct me if I'm wrong. But it was some
11 time in mid April, everything was supposed to be
12 publicized. It was supposed to be finalized and
13 publicized in April. And then a month after that
14 everything was supposed to go into effect.

15 CHAIRMAN WHITE: There was no sunset date I
16 believe. We'll verify that for you if we might have
17 missed something. But there's no sunset date until we
18 come back in, have finalized that process and publish
19 the data.

20 MS. SEMMA: Do you have an idea of when that's
21 going to be?

22 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Not at this time.

23 MS. SEMMA: Thank you.

24 CHAIRMAN WHITE: You're welcome. Good
25 afternoon.

1 MR. MELVILLE: Good afternoon, sirs and ma'am.
2 Joseph Melville, Melville's Towing, Inc., Detroit,
3 Michigan. I'll be submitting two applications for the
4 Detroit Police Towing, one at my current address of
5 12701 Greenfield and one at my new location, 8140 Mark
6 Twain. The five current police authorized towers have
7 moved or are in the process of moving. So therefore I
8 will be submitting an application for that location also
9 with the Board of Police Commissioners' approval.

10 If for some reason if I can't be approved for
11 current because all the slots are taken, I want
12 permission to either be a management company or I'm
13 going to purchase a partnership into a current Detroit
14 authorized tow company, and I'm going to be moving in
15 that location which is also on the west side to my yards
16 on Greenfield and Mark Twain. Since the Board of Police
17 Commissioners has allowed the five companies to move, I
18 wouldn't see why there would be a problem if I purchase
19 a company or buy into and move that company.

20 So, I want to get the guidelines and see what
21 I have to do to do these steps so I don't violate no
22 rules or regulations.

23 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you for coming. I'm
24 sorry, I didn't catch your last name.

25 MR. MELVILLE: Melville, M-e-l-v-i-l-l-e.

1 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Mr. Melville, have you spoken
2 with management services?

3 MR. MELVILLE: I have picked up both of my
4 applications. And both my attorneys, Felicia Duncan and
5 April McGowan are in the process of locking both
6 applications, getting all my clearances as we speak.
7 But since it's the Memorial Day weekend, I'm guessing by
8 this time next Wednesday both my applications will be
9 submitted to management services and to the Board of
10 Police Commissioners.

11 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Commissioner Warfield?

12 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
13 I do have a concern about this, not specifically about
14 your application or filing an application. But I do
15 have a very serious concern and maybe Deputy Chief,
16 Commander Serta would come up to the mic because there
17 are companies that moved from one spot to another. And
18 according to our rules, that permit is not
19 transferable. And I know that there was letters that
20 were signed off on. I have seen the letters up in
21 management services. And that information never came
22 across this Board or to this Board. And I went out
23 there and actually saw the new lot. And the new lot
24 does not comply with the code as relates to what our
25 other permitted towers had to go through to -- for city

1 zoning purposes.

2 And so I need to know how did they get zoned
3 and how did they get moved without this Board weighing
4 in on it when we very specifically said and voted on
5 that there would be no more changes to the rotation
6 until after we had an opportunity to look at the rules
7 and put the new rules in place because even if you're
8 moving within the same district, you impact that
9 particular district or that particular precinct based on
10 the fact that there are visitors in those areas. And
11 depending on what the mileage is it could potentially
12 impact another tower's slot. So, we need to know
13 exactly -- maybe next week -- I'm sure we can't handle
14 it on now. Maybe next week we can hold a hearing on how
15 this thing transpired because when -- there's a way to
16 handle things like this. But it is unfair to those
17 towers who are in that district and to towers who are
18 abiding by the rules and regulations of our tow rules.
19 I mean because if anybody can just up willy-nilly and
20 move, then we will have chaos throughout the entire
21 system. And so, we need to get a handle on this before
22 this thing gets out of control.

23 And I want to know from management services'
24 perspective who gave them permission to move. I also
25 would like to know maybe our Board Secretary and our

1 counselor can look into this, when were they approved
2 with their zoning? How was it approved, who approved it
3 because again, looking at the lot -- and I saw the
4 lot -- it does not comply with zoning, especially as
5 relates to what our other towers was told they had to
6 do. And so, we definitely need to look at that,
7 hopefully maybe at the next meeting. Sir?

8 MR. MELVILLE: This is why I was asking
9 because my lot does conform, does comply. It has since
10 1991. And like I said, if for some reason if my
11 application gets denied, then I would like since they
12 were approved by management services then for me to
13 allow my company to move into my current location with
14 no, you know, repercussions because of it. This is why
15 I'm asking since they were allowed to move, am I going
16 to be allowed to move too?

17 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Melville. And
18 Assistant Chief, we would ask, Mr. Secretary, if we
19 could provide our concerns to the Chief's office that we
20 might have those concerns addressed before our next
21 meeting next Thursday?

22 MR. MELVILLE: Thank you. I will have an
23 answer by next Thursday is what you're saying?

24 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We will address it at the
25 next meeting.

1 MR. MELVILLE: Thank you so much, sir.

2 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you. Good afternoon.

3 MR. SEMAN: Good evening everybody. My name
4 is Jack Seman. Yesterday I watching TV. There was
5 saying 123 schools, they are going to be closed up.
6 What are we going to do it with all those schools? I
7 will give you some recommendation. Those schools, if
8 you could give me opportunity, I would cut down the
9 hunger, the homelessness. And I would like to see the
10 police department -- I work with police department for
11 many years. That's what I want to see our City Council,
12 police department, the Christian youth, Muslims, human
13 being, people of faith. That's all they have to do,
14 one thing. Tell the truth.

15 Reverend Holley right behind me. I wish he
16 would do exactly same thing, preach in our church, it's
17 time to tell the truth or else our name (inaudible).
18 When I was working with Mrs. Barfield was City of
19 Detroit was two million people, we have 800 murders.
20 Today we have same percentage and more. I work with the
21 school. Arthur Jefferson, he send me letter of thanks.
22 I got all the letters over here. And I told
23 Mr. Jefferson, Mr. Jefferson, I am amateur. I was with
24 Chaldean Federation of America (inaudible) for Chaldean
25 Federation. I said, Mr. Jefferson, I say when I come to

1 school, you see all the most of the students, they are
2 hugging and kissing before they go to class. And I say
3 but now, I said look, watch I said where their heads is
4 going to be. It's not going to be in the book. It's
5 going to be in between two legs. I said but now, listen
6 behind your school and the front of your eyes, you're
7 look at those big drug distribution right here. I said
8 do your job. I said, Mr. Jefferson, if you didn't do
9 your job, get the hell out of the way. Six months later
10 here is like. I will give you all the records. I have
11 been working, God bless America is land of opportunity,
12 every one of us. We have to raise our hand to Lord.
13 That's what we have to do, tell the truth or get the
14 hell out of the way. Thank you.

15 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Seman.

16 MR. HOLLEY: Hard act to follow. Thank you,
17 sir. Jim Holley, H-o-l-l-e-y. I'm -- Mr. Chairman and
18 to the Board. I come these two minutes, the first
19 minute as a pastor of the historical Little Rock Baptist
20 Church I'm very accessible. And many people come to me
21 for as they do to many of you for their problems.
22 Mr. Washington, he is 84 years old. Him and his lovely
23 wife, they are in the tow business. And he's supposed
24 to be here with me. He comes to my office. And he is
25 an emotional wreck as you know in terms of feeling like

1 he's been denied an opportunity. He's the oldest
2 African-American tow company in the City of Detroit or
3 he is -- he's the oldest and -- at least I thought he
4 was.

5 But I'm just saying to you, if you don't mind,
6 he is in the hospital now because he is supposed to be
7 here. And he just feels like -- he hasn't had a
8 vacation in 44 years because he is trying to protect his
9 company. And recently, a couple of weeks ago, he was
10 towing a truck, a car, and he was cleaning it up. And
11 the a police officer stopped him and said, what are you
12 doing here, harassed him, so forth according to his
13 testimony. And Robert, you ought to give me a little
14 time here. I hired you you know. You're ungrateful,
15 just ungrateful. I'm just playing with you. What is
16 good for me is for everybody.

17 I just ask because he has nobody to speak for
18 him. And I'm asking if you would, please, I don't want
19 to hurt no business. I just want to make sure if you
20 don't mind that just look into it. He is in the Central
21 -- I think he's in the Central area. And I'm just
22 asking if you would please -- again, him and his wife,
23 they just need help. And they come to me as -- and I am
24 here. The other thing, Mr. Chairman, I am very
25 appreciative. I watch you. I follow this Board. And I

1 couldn't make the press conference for your drive for
2 the millage. And I was busy. But I am supportive. And
3 I would -- as a former commissioner, I love this city, I
4 love the police department, and I love the work that you
5 do.

6 But let me -- I do radio and television. And
7 Mr. Stewart and Mr. Assistant Chief Logan, you can look
8 at me just one minute. I won't be long. Is that if you
9 really want to sell this in my humble opinion, the
10 police department ought to give us residency. I'm going
11 to support you because that's who I am. But I think
12 that if you want to sell this, you got to -- if you want
13 me to support the police salary, the police pension, why
14 should why the city taxpayers support them when they
15 live 23 -- so I'm just saying, I think you can do this.
16 But I think you're going to have to give the city
17 something because the best protections -- and I love
18 you, Mr. Godbee. I love me some Godbee, okay? But I
19 just -- the best protection is to have a police officer
20 in my neighbor, are you following me, living in my
21 neighborhood. So, I leave you alone. I just come, one,
22 to ask you to look out for -- not to hurt anybody. But
23 he's 84 years old. And we all are -- we are advocates
24 for the poor and for the less fortunate and for those
25 who cannot speak for themselves.

1 And secondly, I will support whatever you
2 decide to do. But I'm telling you, from my radio show
3 and my television show, I'm feeling that the opposition
4 will be there unless we give them something for that in
5 exchange. Thank you so much. You're always kind to me.
6 And I thank you for this time.

7 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Reverend.
8 Mr. Washington has served this department well through
9 his services. And if there's something we can do or
10 look into, we'd be more than happy to do that. And we
11 certainly appreciate your vote of confidence in this
12 body and this department. And I believe the residency
13 is a function of the state legislature in terms of how
14 we have lost that. In order to regain that it would
15 take an act of our state legislature. But I'm certain
16 that we would and others would join in that fight to
17 begin that conversation again. Commissioner Warfield?

18 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Thank you, Pastor
19 Holley, again for coming by. As the Chairman said, you
20 know, Mr. Washington is on our current rotation list.
21 So he's a current tower. If there are issues that we
22 specifically need to be aware of, please let us know,
23 and we will certainly look into that. But you're
24 absolutely right, one of the things that I've been doing
25 is working with the unions on that very issue, that

1 there is a way to through union negotiations be able to
2 bypass the residency issue from the state level and to
3 be able to possibly -- I don't want to put all the cards
4 out there. But we will be in conversations with the
5 unions to see if we can do something as relates to a
6 residency issue for the millage because you're
7 absolutely right that that's an issue. We recognize
8 that is an issue. And we are in the process of
9 addressing that and certainly any and all help and
10 experience you want to bring to the table, you know,
11 you're more than welcome to come and join us. But thank
12 you.

13 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you. Good afternoon,
14 sir.

15 MR. LUN: Hello again. My name is Dana Lun.
16 I just come down here again just to find out how do I
17 try to get this resolved about this officer. Again, I
18 wrote this letter some time ago here. I just want to
19 see what are you guys going to do about this officer,
20 between me and this officer about my granddaughter. All
21 they said they did is they just put him in 36th District
22 Court just to walk around. I want to know because what
23 he did, I just want to know because all he did was get
24 put at 36th District Court just to walk around. But
25 what he did on the job as an officer, I didn't like it.

1 And what they -- let me see -- punished him for was
2 nothing. And I don't think he should be an officer
3 walking the street. And, I mean, if you want me to
4 explain to you what he did, I mean, I put it on paper.
5 That's what this Robert Brown told me I had to do. I
6 mean, if you want me to explain it to you verbally right
7 here I can.

8 CHAIRMAN WHITE: If you could submit that
9 paper, we will be happy to look further into your issue.
10 We have worked with you on a number of occasions on this
11 issue.

12 MR. LUN: What I'm saying every time I come
13 down here, that's all you guys do is push me back, push
14 me back. Now it's going on one year. My daughter is --
15 my granddaughter is one year old now. And I keep
16 getting pushed back, back. And I done lost my life
17 twice. And, you know, they resuscitated me twice. I
18 have been operated on 30 times. And I'm not being
19 disrespectful by wearing the dark glasses or anything.
20 I'm legally blind in one eye. I'm just saying, I'm not
21 giving a sob story of myself. I'm glad that I'm living
22 long enough to have a grand child. But if I want to
23 give sob stories and everything, I can put a show on for
24 you. But all I'm saying, I want this guy off the
25 streets just like anybody else who want criminals off

1 the street. Why should he be an officer with the things
2 that he did? And I don't think it's right. That's all
3 I want to do is you guys are getting criminals off the
4 street. Get those dirty officers off the street. I'm
5 not saying all officers are bad. But get the ones
6 that's not doing their job. He's not upholding the law.
7 And I keep coming down here trying to get it
8 straightened out. And I talked to this Robert Brown.
9 And he told me I had to submit this paper. And I
10 brought this paper. I made a copy because once I turn
11 this in, I'm not going to get it back. So I made a
12 copy. And I want to know who is it that I can turn this
13 into? And I got this from Officer Rivera. And she sent
14 it. She sent it to me certified through the mail. I
15 signed for it and everything. I just want results
16 because the foolishness that he did and Lieutenant
17 Flannigan, they came out there. They made a mess. My
18 whole neighborhood saw it. I just want to know what are
19 they going to do about it when they have officers that
20 are doing what they want to do. This is not 1964 or
21 1930 and all of that. It was ridiculous. And they did
22 nothing.

23 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We understand, Mr. Lun. Let
24 me first of all thank you again for taking the time to
25 come down and continue to follow up on your issue.

1 Unfortunately, there is a process to these types of
2 things. And we would not be able to help you if we did
3 not follow the process. So, what -- the letter that you
4 received was an additional step in that process. But if
5 you have further information, via the communication you
6 have provided for us, if you could leave that with us so
7 that we can add that to your file along with the other
8 steps that you have taken over these several weeks that
9 you have come before us, we again will be more than
10 happy to move as diligently as possible to a resolution
11 of your case, for your situation.

12 MR. LUN: Okay. This has been since 2011.

13 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Yes, sir.

14 MR. LUN: I keep coming down there. That's
15 all. I'm not trying to cause no ruckus. But I'm tired
16 of keep coming down here making my way, and nobody is
17 doing nothing about it.

18 CHAIRMAN WHITE: There has been action taken,
19 Mr. Lun. That action may not have been to your
20 satisfaction. But the investigation has been proceeding
21 in the manner that is sufficient for the process and the
22 manner that is above board. That's not to slight you.
23 It's not to slight your granddaughter. Unfortunately,
24 there are certain protocol that are in place. I will be
25 more than happy to look further into your situation via

1 the extra information you have provided us today. But
2 unfortunately we can't solve that issue at this moment.

3 MR. LUN: I understand.

4 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you.

5 MR. LUN: Who should I give this to?

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We will take it right here.

7 Any other communications?

8 MR. WILD: Billy Wild, CEO of Independent
9 Brokers and City Auto Storage. I'd like to set the
10 record straight a little bit concerning these moves that
11 everyone is so concerned about. There are two
12 companies. We have got an approval letter from the
13 police department signed by the deputy chief stating we
14 can make the move. We've got a zoning approval dated
15 November 9, 2011, Board of Zoning Appeal. That's why
16 you will see some things not exactly like they are in
17 the codes. We filed our permit November 10, 2011, the
18 building permit. All required clearances were obtained.
19 Management services visited the location and approved
20 it. And furthermore, your rules do not specify any
21 place in your rules -- and I think there's a half dozen
22 attorneys here that will agree with me -- that address a
23 move if you have to move.

24 Now, also, there was excessive -- not
25 excessive but a lot of money was spent with the City to

1 do this, to expedite it. I mean, we spent several
2 thousand dollars with Building and Safety, spent several
3 thousand dollars with the Zoning Board of Appeals, spent
4 several thousand dollars with engineers to do site
5 plans, surveyors to do the elevations and that. And
6 also, I think the Board is straying away from what their
7 duties are. Now, I look through your duties. And as I
8 understand it, your duties are to enact policy. No
9 where does it say you're a governing body or I can't
10 think of the other word. But the police department
11 supposed to be running the towing on a day-to-day basis.
12 And they have got a tough job. So, I just wanted to
13 clear the air there.

14 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Wild. Thank
15 you.

16 MR. WILD: Okay.

17 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Good afternoon.

18 MS. HAWKINS: Good afternoon. I am Sharonda
19 Hawkins. And I am here yet again in regards to my
20 husband Brandon Johnson's unsolved murder. Again, my
21 husband was murdered August 29, 2011. There were two
22 witnesses with him at the time this murder took place.
23 His case was given to a Sergeant Bowser. I have been
24 here on previous meetings. I have been promised at
25 those meetings that Sergeant Bowser would contact me,

1 keep me abreast of what's going on regarding my
2 husband's case. And as previously stated before, no
3 response from Sergeant Bowser. It's going to be nine
4 months since my husband was murdered on the 29th. I
5 have an 8-year-old daughter I'm raising alone. And we
6 are trying to move forward with our lives. But this
7 can't -- we can't move forward because there is no
8 resolution to his murder. I understand that it's not an
9 overnight process. I get all of that. All I'm asking
10 is do the basic police work. You have these witnesses.
11 You have not brought this one in particular witness in.
12 I don't understand why not.

13 This man had the audacity to speak to me a
14 couple of days ago. Do you know what that feels like,
15 this person that I know is involved in my husband's
16 murder? All I'm asking is do your job, the basics. I'm
17 not asking for any special treatment or anything like
18 that. But he does deserve some justice.

19 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Hawkins, again
20 for the confidence and the courage that you continue to
21 exude and get into this matter. But if I understand you
22 correctly. That you have not since you have come to
23 this body -- and we have asked for the follow-up that
24 you have not received any follow-up communication?

25 MS. HAWKINS: The last time I got a word from

1 Sergeant Bowser, it's been almost two months ago maybe.
2 And at that time, he promised that he was going to bring
3 this guy in and interview him. It has not happened.
4 And like I said, this guy had the audacity to smile and
5 speak to me a couple of days ago and a week and a half
6 prior to that approached my child outside. I can't live
7 like this. And I shouldn't have to. We are law abiding
8 citizens. What happened to him should not have happened
9 to him. I had a meeting with a couple of your people
10 and my apartment complex corporate head maybe a week and
11 a half ago. Everybody is passing the buck. It's the
12 police fault according to the apartment complex.
13 According to the police it's the management's problem.
14 Nobody wants to take responsibility. Nobody is doing
15 anything. And then everybody turns around and says
16 well, it's on the residents.

17 Well, like I explained, the residents are
18 living in fear. They don't trust the police to do what
19 they say they are going to do because they haven't seen
20 anything done. The apartment complex, these people are
21 here for a few hours a day. Once they do clock in, get
22 their pay for the day, they are home. They don't have
23 to live in that. And it's getting worse. And it's not
24 going to get better any time soon. And quite frankly, I
25 am ready to take my child and leave here. But I feel

1 like I am stuck here because if I don't keep showing up
2 here and keep putting his name out there and keep being
3 the face and the voice for him, he will just be yet
4 another cold case in the city that will never get
5 resolved.

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Hawkins. And
7 please know your efforts do matter. I know that the --
8 and Assistant Chief, I believe you can probably speak to
9 this more. But I know there has been a significant
10 amount of activity in the MLK Homes and as it relates to
11 this Hawkins case. And whether or not she is receiving
12 communications or -- I can't speak to whether witnesses
13 are brought in or not. I'm certain that's the
14 investigative side. But Assistant Chief, I certainly
15 hope that Miss Hawkins is being communicated with as to
16 the nature of her case and whatever the next steps are
17 possible.

18 ASSISTANT CHIEF LOGAN: Through the Chair,
19 Assistant Chief Logan. The last time Miss Hawkins was
20 down there I talked to the commanding officer of
21 homicide who indicated that he had just recently talked
22 to Miss Hawkins. He also said that he would reach out
23 again to her. And now I think that was about two or
24 three weeks ago. Also, since then, we conducted a large
25 scale operation down at the Martin Luther King Homes

1 where there are were a number of arrests made, upwards
2 of a hundred vehicles were towed out of there. So, I
3 believe that this incident was also in the paper. So,
4 we've been given a due diligence, and we will continue.
5 And I will assure that somebody from homicide contacts
6 her and no later than tomorrow. Like I said, I just
7 want to make sure the Board understands that the
8 commanding officer assured me that he had already talked
9 to her just that almost at that same day and that he was
10 assured that a follow-up was done. And the thing I need
11 to know -- maybe she hasn't talked to Sergeant Bowser.
12 Has anybody talked to her?

13 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Miss Hawkins.

14 MS. HAWKINS: Thank you.

15 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Any other communications?
16 Any other communications?

17 MS. SMITH: Yes. Bernice Smith, political
18 activist. To the Commissioners, good afternoon to you
19 Deputy Chief. This morning, the Chief was on the air.
20 So, he had very good information in regards to what this
21 new program is going to be about. I called in and I
22 spoke with him in regards to I realize he is in the area
23 where there's not that much crime going on. And I
24 mentioned to him the fact that when this program is over
25 the nine months I believe, will they bring it out to the

1 east side because most of us in this building know the
2 east side is going on a rampant of crime. They're
3 killing and shooting every time you look up. So, I was
4 assured that this program will migrate into the east
5 side.

6 But my thing is today, you're doing good. The
7 police department is going good in areas where you're
8 catching the culprits that are doing all these crimes.
9 In other words, for the Reverend, you did catch the two
10 young men in regards to his situation. But what about
11 the small citizens? That young lady there, she's been
12 coming here for the last two months to my knowledge.
13 And it doesn't seem right for her to continue to come
14 and ask for help from the police department. We must
15 have more interest in our citizens, especially when you
16 have a widow.

17 Now, we have seniors that are being assaulted.
18 You do have some kind of system where you do catch most
19 of them. The 300 is out in the street along with the
20 police. And they are doing what they can. But I'm kind
21 of upset because of the fact that these people are
22 constantly coming here and complaining about they're not
23 getting any kind of cooperation. You assign them to one
24 of the officers, and the next thing you know they are
25 here again telling you that they haven't received any

1 kind of notification. Now this is not right. You got
2 to have some kind of interest in what the citizens need.
3 And they need help.

4 I don't worry about myself. But I try and
5 take care of myself. And I am very careful out here in
6 the streets. But the fact is everybody is not careful.
7 They are being assaulted, they're being hijacked. And
8 men, women, doesn't make any difference. We must be on
9 our guard. And we must help the citizens of this city.
10 We can't be lackadaisical and saying I'm going to assign
11 you to so and so and so and so and so and then you forget about
12 it. I know for a fact that there are drugs being
13 handled in the Luther because it was told to me. And
14 some of your officers have relatives there. I'm not
15 going to give you the name until I get the correct name.
16 But there are officers who have relatives in that
17 particular area. And they know about the drugs. But
18 nothing is being done. So, I would like for you to know
19 that everybody is trying to do the right thing, and some
20 of your officers are not.

21 So, I leave you with this. Help the citizens
22 because they need it badly. You sit there in those
23 seats each week, and you hear our complaints. But yet
24 and still we come back with the same people. The
25 towing. Now I just found out about Mr. Washington. I

1 have been dealing with him for the longest because I
2 lived in that area. And I know about Mr. Washington. I
3 spoke with Deputy Chief and helping me with
4 Mr. Washington's situation. So, I do wish that you
5 would -- I don't want to see him die because if it does
6 come to that because he is in bad shape. He does have a
7 bad heart. I know that for a fact. So please do not
8 just forget about Mr. Washington because he needs money.
9 He needs a living. He's been in there a long time there
10 on Bangor. I know it because I lived on West Grand
11 Boulevard. And when my kids was going to Southwestern
12 High School. So I'll make it short. I just want you to
13 help the citizens more than what you're doing, have more
14 interest in us because we do depend on you for our
15 livelihood and our safety. I thank you very much.

16 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Smith.

17 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Miss Smith, just for
18 the record, because we are keeping a public record and
19 maybe you didn't hear the Assistant Chief. But this
20 department has actually done a number of things over in
21 the Martin Luther King Homes since Mrs. Hawkins have
22 come to the meeting. So, I would not characterize that
23 as this department or this Board has done nothing. They
24 have actually carried out a number of operations over
25 there. And we will get to the bottom of it if there's a

1 miscommunication issue between the one detective. But I
2 know for a fact -- and I've spoken with several Deputy
3 Chiefs -- that they are in communication with Miss
4 Hawkins.

5 As relates to Mr. Washington, he's on the tow
6 list. He is getting calls. He's been on the tow list
7 for over a year since we redid the list and probably
8 longer than that. But he is definitely on the tow
9 rotation. If there was an incident that happened, again
10 we didn't know about it. But of course when things like
11 that come to our attention, we definitely look into it.
12 So, certainly as you know because you're a regular and
13 we thank God that you are, we do as much as we can as
14 relates to when citizens come to that podium or when
15 they write or call us, to check into their concerns.
16 That's what we are here for. And we do our very best to
17 make sure we do that.

18 So, I just don't want it on public record open
19 that we sit in these seats and do nothing because I
20 think that would be a mischaracterization of the truth.

21 MS. SMITH: It would.

22 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: And the department
23 will still continue to work in the Martin Luther King
24 Homes and other areas. But I don't want you to stop
25 doing what you're doing.

1 MS. SMITH: All right.

2 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Because it's because
3 of citizens like you that we are able to have that
4 partnership together. So we thank you as well.

5 MS. SMITH: Thank you.

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you, Commissioner. Any
7 other comments? Any other comments? Any other
8 comments? Mr. Lun, we'll be happy to speak with you
9 right after the meeting. At this time, there are no
10 further comments or communications. Under
11 announcements, please be reminded that the next Board of
12 Police Commissioners meeting will be held Thursday, May
13 31st, at 3:00 p.m. here at police headquarters, 1300
14 Beaubien, Room 328-A. Also, please be put on notice
15 that the Live Police Peace Auction will be held June
16 the 2nd. All bids start at \$5. It's held at 12660
17 Greenfield Road. Registration starts at 10:00 a.m., and
18 the auction starts at 11:00 a.m. For more information,
19 you can call 313-659-3376. At this time, Mr. Secretary,
20 I would ask that you move us for closed session.

21 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As
22 a public body, your meetings are subject to the Open
23 Meetings Act. And the Open Meetings Act defines a
24 meeting as the convening of a public body at which a
25 quorum is present for the purpose of deliberating

1 towards or rendering a decision on a public policy,
2 MCL 15.262(b). The Open Meetings Act, however, does
3 allow a public body to call a closed session, one
4 limited to the public body and its invitees for specific
5 purposes. Only deliberations may be conducted in the
6 closed sessions. All decisions must be made at a
7 meeting open to the public.

8 While in the closed session, the Board makes
9 no decisions. That must be done on the record. On
10 Thursday, May 24, 2012, you will be presented with a
11 suspension without pay recommendation for Police Officer
12 Jeremy Chekosky, C-h-e-k-o-s-k-y, Badge 2611, as well as
13 Police Officer Mashariki, M-a-s-h-a-r-i-k-i Jackson,
14 Badge 837, through their representative DPOA Attorney
15 John J. Goldpaugh. Both officers have requested closed
16 sessions for the purpose of contesting the suspension
17 without pay recommendation. The closed sessions will be
18 called pursuant to MCL 15.268(a) of the Open Meetings
19 Act, which states in pertinent part, "A public body may
20 meet in a closed session to consider the suspension of
21 or hear charges brought against an employee. A simple
22 majority vote or quorum of three is required to close a
23 session for this purpose." Mr. Chair, a motion is in
24 order.

25 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you kindly. What is

1 your pleasure?

2 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Sir, move that we move
3 into closed session to discuss the personnel matters
4 before us.

5 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Properly moved and supported.
7 Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor?

8 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

9 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed? Thank you very
10 much. We will reconvene after our closed session.
11 Thank you.

12 (The Board convened into closed session)

13 CHAIRMAN WHITE: We'll call this meeting back
14 to order, Mr. Secretary.

15 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Yes, sir. A motion is in
16 order to call the meeting back in order or are you
17 convening it by consensus?

18 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Is there a motion to
19 reconvene?

20 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Sir, I move to
21 reconvene back to open meeting from closed session as we
22 discussed personnel matters.

23 COMMISSIONER TAYLOR: Support.

24 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Properly moved and supported.
25 Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor?

1 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

2 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed? Thank you very
3 much. Mr. Secretary?

4 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Mr. Chair, you have heard
5 the -- in closed session, you have heard the suspension
6 without pay recommendation cases involving Police
7 Officer Jeremy Chekosky, Badger 2611. Unless
8 contravened by this Board, the suspension without pay
9 recommendation will stand.

10 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Commissioners, as relates to
11 the suspension without pay of Police Officer Jeremy
12 Chekosky, Badge 2611, are there any contraventions?
13 Seeing none, the suspension without pay for Police
14 Officer Jeremy Chekosky, Badge 2611, will stand.
15 Mr. Secretary?

16 SECRETARY ANTHONY: The Board has also
17 entertained the suspension without pay recommendation of
18 the Chief for Police Officer Mashariki Jackson, Badge
19 837. And unless contravened by this Board, the
20 suspension without pay recommendation will stand.

21 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Thank you. Commissioners,
22 before us is the suspension without pay request for
23 Police Officer Mashariki Jackson, Badge 837. Unless
24 contravened by this Board, the suspension will stand.
25 Are there any contraventions? Seeing none, the

1 suspension stands. I don't believe there is any further
2 business before us. A motion for adjournment is in
3 order at this time.

4 COMMISSIONER STEWART: So moved.

5 COMMISSIONER WARFIELD: Second.

6 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Properly moved and supported.

7 All in favor?

8 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

9 CHAIRMAN WHITE: Opposed. Thank you.

10 (Proceedings concluded at 4:30 p.m.)

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF MACOMB)

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I reported
stenographically the foregoing proceedings and testimony
under oath at the time and place hereinbefore set forth;
that thereafter the same was reduced to computer
transcription under my supervision; and that this is a
full, true, complete and correct transcription of said
proceedings.



Wendy A. Boer

Wendy A. Boer,

CSR 3505

A
abiding 13:18
 27:7
able 20:1,3 23:2
 34:3
abreast 26:1
absolutely 19:24
 20:7
ac 4:4
accessible 16:20
act 9:7 16:16
 19:15 34:23,23
 35:2,19
action 23:18,19
activist 29:18
activity 28:10
add 23:7
added 5:8
additional 23:4
additions 9:23
address 7:5,15
 11:4 14:24
 24:22
addressed 14:20
addressing 20:9
adjournment 38:2
advocates 18:23
africanamerican
 17:2
afternoon 3:4
 7:11 9:11,12
 10:25 11:1
 15:2 20:13
 25:17,18 29:18
agenda 4:22 5:3
 5:4
ago 10:6 17:9
 20:18 26:14
 27:1,5,11
 28:24
agree 24:22
air 25:13 29:19
alan 3:24
allotted 7:9
allow 14:13 35:3
allowed 11:17
 14:15,16
amateur 15:23
amen 4:19
amendment 5:7
america 15:24

16:11
amount 28:10
announcements
 34:11
answer 14:23
anthony 2:14
 3:14,17,18 6:8
 6:19 34:21
 36:15 37:4,16
anybody 9:16
 13:19 18:22
 21:25 29:12
apartment 27:10
 27:12,20
appeal 24:15
appeals 25:3
appearances 2:1
application 11:8
 12:14,14 14:11
applications
 11:3 12:4,6,8
appreciate 19:11
appreciative
 17:25
approached 27:6
approval 4:22
 5:14 11:9
 24:12,14
approved 11:10
 14:1,2,2,12
 24:19
april 10:11,13
 12:5
area 17:21 29:22
 31:17 32:2
areas 13:10 30:7
 33:24
arrests 29:1
arthur 15:21
asked 26:23
asking 14:8,15
 17:18,22 26:9
 26:16,17
assaulted 30:17
 31:7
assign 30:23
 31:10
assistant 2:12
 4:3,5 9:1,4,5
 14:18 18:7
 28:8,14,18,19
 32:19

assure 29:5
assured 29:8,10
 30:4
attention 33:11
attest 8:17
attorney 3:20
 6:14,15 7:24
 35:14
attorneys 12:4
 24:22
auction 34:15,18
audacity 26:13
 27:4
audience 7:4
august 25:21
authorized 11:6
 11:14
auto 24:9
aware 19:22
aye 5:11,12,21
 6:4 36:8 37:1
 38:8

B

back 6:23 8:9,11
 9:7,15 10:18
 21:13,14,16,16
 22:11 31:24
 36:13,16,21
bad 22:5 32:6,7
badge 6:12,14
 35:12,14 37:12
 37:14,18,23
badger 37:7
badly 31:22
bangor 32:10
banks 3:19
baptist 16:19
barfield 15:18
based 13:9
basic 26:10
basics 26:16
basis 25:11
beaubien 1:16
 34:14
beautiful 4:13
 6:22
beginning 7:18
believe 4:7
 10:16 19:12
 28:8 29:3,25
 38:1

ben 9:5
bernice 29:17
best 18:17,19
 33:16
better 27:24
bids 34:16
big 16:7
billy 24:8
bit 24:10
bless 4:17,17
 16:11
blind 21:20
board 1:2,6 3:5
 3:9,11,14,15
 3:18,20 4:17
 7:5 9:8 11:9
 11:16 12:9,22
 12:22 13:3,25
 16:18 17:25
 23:22 24:15
 25:3,6 29:7
 32:23 34:11
 35:8 36:12
 37:8,16,19,24
body 9:25 19:12
 25:9 26:23
 34:22,24 35:3
 35:4,19
boer 1:20 3:23
 39:18
book 16:4
bottom 32:25
boulevard 32:11
bowser 25:23,25
 26:3 27:1
 29:11
brandon 25:20
bring 20:10 27:2
 29:25
brokers 24:9
brought 22:10
 26:11 28:13
 35:21
brown 3:22 21:5
 22:8
buck 27:11
building 24:18
 25:2 30:1
bureau 3:21
bus 8:4
business 7:2,2
 16:23 17:19

38:2
bust 8:2
busy 18:2
buy 11:19
bypass 20:2

C

call 33:15 34:19
35:3 36:13,16
called 8:9,11
29:21 35:18
calls 8:10,13,13
33:6
canceled 8:9
canine 8:5
cant 11:10 13:13
24:2 25:9 26:7
26:7 27:6
28:12 31:10
car 17:10
cards 20:3
care 8:22 31:5
careful 31:5,6
carried 32:24
case 23:11 25:23
26:2 28:4,11
28:16
cases 37:6
catch 11:24 30:9
30:18
catching 30:8
cause 23:15
celia 3:19
cell 8:11,12
central 7:19,20
8:15 17:20,21
ceo 24:8
certain 8:25
10:4 19:15
23:24 28:13
certainly 19:11
19:23 20:9
28:14 33:12
certificate 39:1
certified 22:14
certify 39:8
chair 3:8,11 6:8
9:5 12:12
28:18 34:21
35:23 37:4
chairman 3:4 4:2
4:6,20 5:1,11

5:13,18,22 6:1
6:5,17,21 7:14
8:24 9:9,18,20
10:7,15,22,24
11:23 12:1,11
14:17,24 15:2
16:15,17 17:24
19:7,19 20:13
21:8 22:23
23:13,18 24:4
24:6 25:14,17
26:19 28:6
29:13,15 32:16
34:6 35:25
36:6,9,13,18
36:24 37:2,10
37:21 38:6,9
chairperson 2:4
chairpersons 6:6
chaldean 15:24
15:24
changes 13:5
chaos 13:20
chaplain 4:7
characterize
32:22
charges 35:21
check 33:15
chef 28:14
chekosky 6:11,12
35:12,12 37:7
37:12,14
chester 2:12 4:4
chief 2:12 4:3,3
4:5 5:5 6:10
9:1,4,5 12:15
14:18 18:7
24:13 28:8,18
28:19 29:19,19
32:3,19 37:18
chiefs 14:19
33:3
child 21:22 27:6
27:25
christian 15:12
church 15:16
16:20
citizens 27:8
30:11,15 31:2
31:9,21 32:13
33:14 34:3
city 1:1 4:18

12:25 15:11,18
17:2 18:3,14
18:16 24:9,25
28:4 31:9
class 16:2
cleaning 17:10
clear 25:13
clearances 12:6
24:18
clock 27:21
close 35:22
closed 5:4 6:9
6:18,19 7:1
15:5 34:20
35:3,6,8,15,17
35:20 36:3,10
36:12,21 37:5
code 12:24
codes 24:17
cold 28:4
colleagues 3:10
5:2 6:23
come 7:6 10:18
12:16 15:25
16:18,20 17:23
18:21 20:11,16
21:12 22:25
23:9 26:22
30:13 31:24
32:6,22 33:11
33:14
comes 16:24
comfortable 9:22
coming 11:23
19:19 22:7
23:14,16 30:12
30:22
commander 12:16
commanding 28:20
29:8
commencing 1:18
comment 9:24
comments 34:7,7
34:8,10
commissioner 2:6
2:8,10 3:7,11
3:12,13 4:8,25
5:9,10,16,17
5:24,25 12:11
12:12 18:3
19:17,18 32:17
33:22 34:2,6

36:2,5,20,23
38:4,5
commissioners
1:2 3:6,9,14
5:12,21 6:4
7:5 9:22 11:9
11:17 12:10
29:18 34:12
36:8 37:1,10
37:21 38:8
communicated
28:15
communication
23:5 26:24
33:3
communications
6:24 7:4,10
24:7 28:12
29:15,16 34:10
community 8:16
8:25
companies 11:17
12:17 24:12
company 11:12,14
11:19,19 14:13
17:2,9
complaining
30:22
complaints 31:23
complete 39:13
complex 27:10,12
27:20
comply 12:24
14:4,9
computer 39:11
concern 12:13,15
concerned 24:11
concerning 24:10
concerns 8:19
14:19,20 33:15
concluded 38:10
concludes 3:25
6:15
conducted 28:24
35:5
conference 18:1
confidence 19:11
26:20
conform 14:9
consensus 36:17
consider 35:20
constantly 30:22

contact 25:25
contacts 29:5
contesting 35:16
continue 22:25
 26:20 29:4
 30:13 33:23
contravened 37:8
 37:19,24
contraventions
 37:12,25
control 13:22
convened 36:12
convening 34:24
 36:17
conversation
 19:17
conversations
 20:4
cooperation
 30:23
copies 7:23
copy 7:24 22:10
 22:12
corktown 7:17
 8:18
corner 9:10
corporate 27:10
correct 10:10
 31:15 39:13
correctly 26:22
couldnt 18:1
council 15:11
counselor 14:1
county 7:19 39:6
couple 17:9
 26:14 27:5,9
courage 26:20
course 33:10
court 3:23 20:22
 20:24
crime 29:23 30:2
crimes 30:8
criminals 21:25
 22:3
csr 1:20 39:19
culprits 30:8
current 11:4,6
 11:11,13 14:13
 19:20,21
cut 15:8

D

dana 20:15
dark 21:19
data 10:19
date 10:5,10,15
 10:17
dated 3:6 5:14
 24:14
daughter 21:14
 26:5
day 4:12,13 6:22
 12:7 27:21,22
 29:9
days 26:14 27:5
daytoday 25:11
dc 9:5,9
deadline 10:3,5
 10:7
dealing 7:16
 32:1
decide 19:2
decision 35:1
decisions 35:6,9
defines 34:23
definitely 14:6
 33:8,11
deliberating
 34:25
deliberations
 6:25 9:20 35:5
denied 14:11
 17:1
department 7:20
 15:10,10,12
 18:4,10 19:8
 19:12 24:13
 25:10 30:7,14
 32:20,23 33:22
depend 32:14
depending 13:11
deputy 12:15
 24:13 29:19
 32:3 33:2
deserve 26:18
detective 33:1
detroit 1:1,17
 3:1 4:18 11:2
 11:4,13 15:19
 17:2
didnt 10:3 11:24
 16:8 20:25
 32:19 33:10
die 32:5

difference 31:8
diligence 29:4
diligently 23:10
diponio 7:11,12
 7:12,16 8:24
 9:2,6,9
dirty 22:4
discuss 36:3
discussed 36:22
discussion 5:2
 5:19 6:2 36:7
 36:25
disrespectful
 21:19
distribution
 16:7
district 7:19,21
 8:15 13:8,9,17
 20:21,24
doesnt 30:13
 31:8
doing 8:21 17:12
 19:24 22:6,20
 23:17 27:14
 30:6,8,20
 32:13 33:25,25
dollars 25:2,3,4
donnell 2:4 3:7
dont 4:6 7:15
 9:22 11:21
 17:5,18,20
 20:3 21:2 22:2
 26:12 27:18,22
 28:1 31:4 32:5
 33:18,24 38:1
door 6:9
dozen 24:21
dpoa 6:15 35:14
drive 18:1
drug 7:16 16:7
drugs 31:12,17
due 29:4
duncan 12:4
duties 25:7,7,8

E

east 30:1,2,4
effect 10:14
efforts 28:7
either 11:12
elevations 25:5
emotional 16:25

employee 35:21
empower 4:15
enact 25:8
engineers 25:4
entertained
 37:17
entire 13:20
especially 4:18
 14:4 30:15
evening 8:3 15:3
everybody 6:22
 15:3 17:16
 27:11,15 31:6
 31:19
exactly 13:13
 15:16 24:16
excessive 24:24
 24:25
exchange 19:5
excited 6:23
executive 2:14
 3:15
expedite 25:1
experience 20:10
explain 21:4,6
explained 27:17
extra 24:1
exude 26:21
eye 21:20
eyes 16:6

F

face 28:3
fact 13:10 29:24
 30:21 31:6,12
 32:7 33:2
faith 15:13
far 9:14
father 4:16
fault 27:12
favor 5:11,20
 6:3 36:7,25
 38:7
fear 27:18
federation 15:24
 15:25
feel 27:25
feeling 16:25
 19:3
feels 17:7 26:14
felicia 12:4
fight 19:16

file 23:7
filed 24:17
filing 12:14
finalize 10:1
finalized 9:15
 10:12,18
find 20:16
fine 5:9
finishing 8:4
first 6:10 7:8
 16:18 22:24
five 11:6,17
flannigan 22:17
floor 7:2
follow 16:16
 17:25 22:25
 23:3
following 9:11
 18:20
followup 26:23
 26:24 29:10
foolishness
 22:16
foregoing 39:9
forfeiture 5:6
forget 31:11
 32:8
formal 6:6
former 18:3
forth 17:12
 39:10
fortunate 18:24
forward 5:4 7:6
 26:6,7
found 31:25
frankly 27:24
front 16:6
full 39:13
function 19:13
further 21:9
 23:5,25 34:10
 38:1
furthermore
 24:20

G

george 2:14 3:14
 3:17
getting 12:6
 21:16 22:3
 27:23 30:23
 33:6

give 4:14,18
 8:11 15:7,8
 16:10 17:13
 18:10,16 19:4
 21:23 24:5
 31:15
given 25:23 29:4
giving 21:21
glad 21:21
glasses 21:19
glory 4:14,19
go 10:14 12:25
 16:2
god 16:11 33:13
godbee 18:18,18
going 6:21 7:17
 9:14 10:21
 11:13,14 14:15
 15:5,6 16:4,4
 16:5 18:10,16
 20:19 21:14
 22:11,19 26:1
 26:3 27:2,19
 27:24 29:21,23
 30:2,7 31:10
 31:15 32:11
goldpaugh 6:15
 6:15 35:15
good 3:4 4:21
 7:11 9:11,12
 10:24 11:1
 15:2,3 17:16
 20:13 25:17,18
 29:18,20 30:6
 30:7
gotten 7:20 8:18
governing 25:9
grand 21:22
 32:10
granddaughter
 20:20 21:15
 23:23
grateful 4:12,12
greenfield 11:5
 11:16 34:17
greyhound 8:3
guard 31:9
guessing 12:7
guidelines 11:20
guy 21:24 27:3,4
guys 10:4,5
 20:19 21:13

22:3

H

half 7:21 24:21
 27:5,11
hand 16:12
handle 13:13,16
 13:21
handled 31:13
hanson 3:23
happened 27:3,8
 27:8 33:9
happy 7:14 19:10
 21:9 23:10,25
 34:8
harassed 17:12
hard 16:16
hasnt 17:7 29:11
havent 7:20 9:15
 27:19 30:25
hawkins 25:18,19
 26:19,25 28:6
 28:11,15,19,22
 29:13,14 32:21
 33:4
head 27:10
headquarters
 34:13
heads 16:3
hear 6:24 31:23
 32:19 35:21
heard 9:15 37:4
 37:5
hearing 9:25
 13:14
heart 32:7
held 9:25 10:1
 34:12,15,16
hell 16:9,14
hello 20:15
help 17:23 20:9
 23:2 30:14
 31:3,9,21
 32:13
helping 32:3
hereinbefore
 39:10
hes 8:10,18
 16:23 17:1,1,3
 17:21 18:23
 19:21 22:6
 32:9 33:5,6

high 32:12
hijacked 31:7
hired 17:14
historical 16:19
hold 13:14
holley 4:8,9,11
 15:15 16:16,17
 16:17 19:19
home 27:22
homelessness
 15:9
homes 28:10,25
 32:21 33:24
homicide 28:21
 29:5
honor 4:10
hope 28:15
hopefully 14:7
hospital 17:6
hours 27:21
hugging 16:2
human 3:21 15:12
humble 18:9
hundred 29:2
hunger 15:9
hurt 17:19 18:22
husband 25:20,21
 26:4
husbands 26:2,15

I

id 24:9
idea 10:20
ill 6:13 11:3
 32:12
im 7:16 8:11,25
 9:16 10:10
 11:12,14,23
 12:7 13:13
 14:15 16:17,20
 17:5,15,18,21
 18:10,15 19:2
 19:3,15 21:12
 21:18,20,20,20
 21:21,21,24
 22:4,11 23:15
 23:15 26:5,9
 26:16,16 28:13
 30:20 31:10,14
impact 13:8,12
inaudible 15:17
 15:24

incident 29:3
33:9
includes 8:15
including 7:24
independent 24:8
indicated 28:21
information 8:21
9:7 12:21 23:5
24:1 29:20
34:18
interest 30:15
31:2 32:14
interview 27:3
introduce 3:16
introductions
3:25
investigation
23:20
investigative
28:14
invitees 35:4
invocation 4:10
involved 26:15
involvement 8:25
involves 6:11
involving 37:6
issue 9:3 19:25
20:2, 6, 7, 8
21:9, 11 22:25
24:2 33:1
issues 19:21
ive 7:22 8:7
19:24 33:2

J

jack 15:4
jackson 6:13
35:13 37:18, 23
jefferson 15:21
15:23, 23, 25
16:8
jeremy 6:11
35:12 37:7, 11
37:14
jerome 2:6 3:12
jessica 2:8 3:13
jim 4:8, 8 16:17
job 16:8, 9 20:25
22:6 25:12
26:16
john 6:14, 15
35:15

johnsons 25:20
join 19:16 20:11
joined 3:10
joseph 11:2
julie 9:12
june 34:15
justice 26:18

K

keep 21:15 22:7
23:14, 16 26:1
28:1, 2, 2
keeping 32:18
kids 32:11
killing 30:3
kind 19:5 30:18
30:20, 23 31:1
31:2
kindly 35:25
king 28:25 32:21
33:23
kissing 16:2
know 6:22 8:21
9:13 12:19
13:2, 12, 23, 25
14:14 16:25
17:14 19:20, 22
20:10, 22, 23
21:17 22:12, 18
26:14, 15 28:7
28:7, 9 29:11
30:1, 24 31:12
31:17, 18 32:2
32:7, 10 33:2
33:10, 12
knowledge 30:12

L

lackadaisical
31:10
lady 30:11
land 16:11
laptop 7:23
large 28:24
law 22:6 27:7
leading 4:9
leave 18:21 23:6
27:25 31:21
lee 9:6, 9
left 3:10, 12
legally 21:20
legislature

19:13, 15
legs 16:5
letter 15:21
20:18 23:3
24:12
letters 12:19, 20
15:22
level 20:2
lieutenant 3:20
22:16
life 21:16
limited 35:4
list 19:20 33:6
33:6, 7
listen 16:5
little 16:19
17:13 24:10
live 7:13 18:15
27:6, 23 34:15
lived 32:2, 10
livelihood 32:15
lives 26:6
living 18:20
21:21 27:18
32:9
location 11:5, 8
11:15 14:13
24:19
locations 8:20
locking 12:5
logan 2:12 4:4, 4
4:5 9:4, 5 18:7
28:18, 19
long 18:8 21:22
32:9
longer 33:8
longest 32:1
look 13:6 14:1, 6
16:3, 7 17:20
18:7, 22 19:10
19:23 21:9
23:25 25:7
30:3 33:11
looking 14:3
lord 4:11 16:12
lost 19:14 21:16
lot 12:23, 23
14:3, 4, 9 24:25
lots 8:21
love 18:3, 4, 4, 17
18:18
lovely 16:22

lun 20:15, 15
21:12 22:23
23:12, 14, 19
24:3, 5 34:8
luther 28:25
31:13 32:21
33:23

M

maam 11:1
macomb 39:6
mail 22:14
majority 35:22
making 23:16
man 26:13
management 11:12
12:2, 9, 21
13:23 14:12
24:19
managements
27:13
manager 3:22
manner 23:21, 22
mark 11:5, 16
martin 28:25
32:21 33:23
mashariki 6:13
35:13, 13 37:18
37:23
matter 26:21
28:7
matters 36:3, 22
mcgowan 12:5
mcl 35:2, 18
mean 13:19 21:3
21:4, 6 25:1
meet 35:20
meeting 1:6 3:6
4:10 5:15 8:8
9:11 10:1 14:7
14:21, 25 27:9
32:22 34:9, 12
34:24 35:7
36:13, 16, 21
meetings 8:18
10:8 25:24, 25
34:22, 23, 23
35:2, 18
melville 11:1, 2
11:25, 25, 25
12:1, 3 14:8, 17
14:22 15:1

melvilles 11:2
memorial 12:7
men 30:10 31:8
mentioned 29:24
mess 22:17
mic 12:16
michigan 1:17
 3:1 11:3 39:4
mid 10:11
migrate 30:4
mileage 13:11
millage 18:2
 20:6
million 15:19
mind 4:9 17:5,20
mindful 7:8
minute 8:9 16:19
 18:8
minutes 5:14,22
 16:18
mischaracteri...
 33:20
miscommunication
 33:1
missed 10:17
mlk 28:10
moment 24:2
money 24:25 32:8
month 10:6,13
months 16:9 26:4
 27:1 29:25
 30:12
moore 8:7
morning 29:19
motion 4:22 5:6
 35:23 36:15,18
 38:2
move 11:17,19
 13:20,24 14:13
 14:15,16 23:10
 24:14,23,23
 26:6,7 34:20
 36:2,2,20
moved 4:24 5:1,4
 5:10,16,18,24
 6:1 11:7 12:17
 13:3 36:6,24
 38:4,6
moves 24:10
moving 11:7,14
 13:8
multiple 8:19

murder 25:20,22
 26:8,16
murdered 25:21
 26:4
murders 15:19
muslims 15:12

N

name 3:7 4:19
 7:7,8,11 11:24
 15:3,17 20:15
 28:2 31:15,15
nature 28:16
need 7:25 13:2
 13:12,21 14:6
 17:23 19:22
 29:10 31:2,3
 31:22
needs 32:8,9
negotiations
 20:1
neighbor 18:20
neighborhood
 18:21 22:18
never 12:21 28:4
new 7:2 11:5
 12:23,23 13:7
 29:21
night 8:9
nine 26:3 29:25
note 4:7
notice 34:14
notification
 31:1
november 24:15
 24:17
number 8:6,7,12
 21:10 29:1
 32:20,24

O

oath 39:10
obtained 24:18
occasions 21:10
office 3:22 4:3
 5:5 14:19
 16:24
officer 6:11,13
 8:7 17:11
 18:19 20:17,19
 20:20,25 21:2
 22:1,13 28:20

 29:8 35:11,13
 37:7,11,14,18
 37:23
officers 4:17
 8:16 22:4,5,19
 30:24 31:14,16
 31:20 35:15
okay 18:18 23:12
 25:16
old 7:2 16:22
 18:23 21:15
oldest 17:1,3
once 9:7,21
 22:10 27:21
ones 22:5
open 7:1 33:18
 34:22,23 35:2
 35:7,18 36:21
operated 21:18
operation 28:25
operations 32:24
opinion 18:9
opportunity 13:6
 15:8 16:11
 17:1
opposed 5:13,22
 6:5 36:9 37:2
 38:9
opposition 19:3
oral 6:24 7:3
order 19:14
 35:24 36:14,16
 36:16 38:3
ought 17:13
 18:10
outside 6:23
 27:6
overnight 26:9

P

page 1:14
paper 21:4,9
 22:9,10 29:3
part 35:19
particular 13:9
 13:9 26:11
 31:17
partnership
 11:13 34:4
passed 5:7
passing 27:11
pastor 4:9 16:19

 19:18
pay 6:10 27:22
 35:11,17 37:6
 37:8,11,13,17
 37:20,22
peace 34:15
pension 18:13
people 4:16
 15:13,19 16:20
 27:9,20 30:21
 31:24
percentage 15:20
period 7:9
permission 11:12
 13:24
permit 12:18
 24:17,18
permitted 12:25
person 3:8 26:15
personally 7:22
personnel 36:3
 36:22
perspective
 13:24
pertinent 35:19
phone 8:7,10,12
 8:12
photos 7:22
picked 12:3
place 13:7 23:24
 24:21 25:22
 39:10
places 7:24
plans 25:5
playing 17:15
please 3:16 7:7
 17:18,22 19:22
 28:7 32:7
 34:11,14
pleasure 3:8
 36:1
podium 33:14
police 1:2 2:12
 3:5,9,14 5:5
 6:11,12 7:5
 8:6 11:4,6,9
 11:16 12:10
 15:10,10,12
 17:11 18:4,10
 18:13,13,19
 24:13 25:10
 26:10 27:12,13

27:18 30:7,14
 30:20 34:12,13
 34:15 35:11,13
 37:6,11,13,18
 37:23
policy 25:8 35:1
political 29:17
poor 18:24
portion 9:24
 10:8
possible 23:10
 28:17
possibly 20:3
postpone 5:5
potentially
 13:11
praise 4:14,19
pray 4:11
preach 15:16
precinct 13:9
presence 4:8,15
present 3:19
 34:25
presentation 5:6
presented 35:10
press 18:1
previous 25:24
previously 26:2
prior 10:8 27:6
probably 28:8
 33:7
problem 11:18
 27:13
problems 16:21
proceeding 23:20
proceedings 3:25
 38:10 39:9,14
process 10:2,18
 11:7 12:5 20:8
 23:1,3,4,21
 26:9
program 29:21,24
 30:4
promised 25:24
 27:2
properly 5:1,18
 6:1 36:6,24
 38:6
protect 17:8
protection 18:19
protections
 18:17

protocol 23:24
provide 14:19
provided 9:21,24
 23:6 24:1
public 9:24
 32:18 33:18
 34:22,24 35:1
 35:3,4,7,19
publicized 10:12
 10:13
publish 10:18
published 9:15
punished 21:1
purchase 11:13
 11:18
purpose 5:3 7:6
 34:25 35:16,23
purposes 13:1
 35:5
pursuant 35:18
push 21:13,13
pushed 21:16
put 10:5 13:7
 20:3,21,24
 21:4,23 34:14
putting 28:2

Q

quinn 3:24
quite 27:24
quorum 34:25
 35:22

R

radio 18:6 19:2
raise 16:12
raising 26:5
rampant 30:2
reach 28:22
ready 27:25
realize 29:22
really 18:9
rear 9:10
reason 11:10
 14:10
received 8:14
 23:4 26:24
 30:25
receiving 28:11
recognize 20:7
recollection
 10:9

recommendation
 5:3 10:1 15:7
 35:11,17 37:6
 37:9,17,20
recommendations
 6:10 9:23
reconvene 36:10
 36:19,21
record 3:7,18
 6:18 7:7,8,13
 7:15 24:10
 32:18,18 33:18
 35:9
recording 3:24
records 8:12
 16:10
rectified 8:1
redid 33:7
reduced 39:11
regain 19:14
regarding 26:1
regards 25:19
 29:20,22 30:10
registration
 34:17
regular 1:6
 33:12
regulations
 11:22 13:18
relates 12:24
 14:5 20:5
 28:10 33:5,14
 37:10
relations 8:16
relatives 31:14
 31:16
reminded 34:11
rendering 35:1
repercussions
 14:14
report 6:6,7,16
reported 39:8
reporter 39:1
reporting 3:23
representative
 35:14
representing
 3:13,21 4:3
request 37:22
requested 35:15
requests 6:9
required 24:18

35:22
residency 18:10
 19:12 20:2,6
residents 27:16
 27:17
resolution 23:10
 26:8
resolved 20:17
 28:5
resource 3:21
response 26:3
responsibility
 27:14
results 22:15
resuscitated
 21:17
reverend 4:8,11
 4:20 15:15
 19:7 30:9
reviewed 9:23
ridiculous 22:21
right 3:10,12
 4:16 15:15
 16:7 19:24
 20:7 21:6 22:2
 24:6 30:13
 31:1,19 34:1,9
rivera 22:13
road 34:17
robert 3:22
 17:13 21:5
 22:8
rock 16:19
rodney 3:20
room 1:16 34:14
rotation 13:5
 19:20 33:9
ruckus 23:15
rules 9:14 11:22
 12:18 13:6,7
 13:18,18 24:20
 24:21
running 25:11

S

safe 7:24
safety 25:2
 32:15
salary 18:13
satisfaction
 23:20
saw 12:23 14:3

22:18
saying 14:23
 15:5 17:5
 18:15 21:12,20
 21:24 22:5
 31:10
says 27:15
scale 28:25
school 15:21
 16:1,6 32:12
schools 15:5,6,7
seats 31:23
 33:19
second 5:17,25
 6:12 38:5
secondly 19:1
secretary 2:14
 3:15,15,17,18
 4:2 6:7,8,17
 6:19 13:25
 14:18 34:19,21
 36:14,15 37:3
 37:4,15,16
see 4:21 9:10
 11:18,20 15:9
 15:11 16:1
 20:5,19 21:1
 24:16 32:5
seeing 5:19 6:2
 36:7,25 37:13
 37:25
seen 12:20 27:19
sell 18:9,12
seman 15:3,4
 16:15
semma 9:12,12,19
 10:3,9,20,23
send 15:21
seniors 30:17
sent 4:13 22:13
 22:14
sergeant 3:24
 25:23,25 26:3
 27:1 29:11
serious 12:15
serta 12:16
served 19:8
serves 4:17
service 3:24
services 12:2,9
 12:21 13:23
 14:12 19:9

24:19
serving 3:8
session 7:1
 34:20 35:3,8
 35:20,23 36:3
 36:10,12,21
 37:5
sessions 5:4 6:9
 6:18,20 35:6
 35:16,17
set 8:8 24:9
 39:10
shape 32:6
sharonda 25:18
sheriffs 7:19
shes 30:11
shooting 30:3
short 32:12
shouldnt 27:7
show 8:12 19:2,3
 21:23
showing 28:1
side 11:15 28:14
 30:1,2,5
signed 12:20
 22:15 24:13
significant 28:9
simple 35:21
single 8:16
sir 3:17 4:1,10
 4:20 6:21 9:4
 14:7 15:1
 16:17 20:14
 23:13 36:2,15
 36:20
sirs 11:1
sit 6:25 8:22
 31:22 33:19
site 25:4
situation 23:11
 23:25 30:10
 32:4
six 8:20 16:9
sizemore 3:21
slight 23:22,23
slot 13:12
slots 11:11
small 30:11
smile 27:4
smith 29:17,17
 32:16,17 33:21
 34:1,5

sob 21:21,23
solve 24:2
somebody 7:25
 29:5
soon 27:24
sorry 11:24
southwestern
 32:11
speak 9:2 12:6
 17:17 18:25
 26:13 27:5
 28:8,12 34:8
special 5:15
 26:17
specific 35:4
specifically
 12:13 13:4
 19:22
specify 24:20
spell 6:13 7:7
spent 24:25 25:1
 25:2,3
spoke 8:2 29:22
 32:3
spoken 12:1 33:2
spot 12:17
ss 39:5
staff 3:13,16
stand 37:9,14,20
 37:24
standing 9:10
stands 38:1
start 34:16
starts 34:17,18
state 7:7 19:13
 19:15 20:2
 39:4
stated 26:2
states 35:19
stating 24:13
station 8:4
status 9:13,16
stenographically
 39:9
step 23:4
steps 11:21 23:8
 28:16
steven 7:12,12
stewart 2:10
 3:11 4:24 5:10
 5:16 18:7 38:4
stop 33:24

stopped 8:4
 17:11
storage 24:9
stories 21:23
story 21:21
straight 24:10
straightened
 22:8
straying 25:6
street 1:16 21:3
 22:1,4,4 30:19
streets 21:25
 31:6
stuck 28:1
students 16:1
subject 34:22
submit 21:8 22:9
submitted 12:9
submitting 11:3
 11:8
subsequent 8:10
sufficient 23:21
sunset 10:15,17
supervision
 39:12
support 4:25
 18:11,13,14
 19:1 36:5,23
supported 5:2,7
 5:19 6:2 36:6
 36:24 38:6
supportive 18:2
supposed 8:8
 10:11,12,14
 16:23 17:6
 25:11
sure 13:13 17:19
 29:7 33:17
surveillance
 7:22
surveyors 25:5
suspect 8:6
suspension 6:9
 35:11,16,20
 37:5,8,11,13
 37:17,20,22,24
 38:1
system 13:21
 30:18

T

table 20:10

take 19:15 24:6
 27:14,25 31:5
taken 1:16 7:22
 8:22 11:11
 23:8,18
talk 7:25
talked 22:8
 28:20,21 29:8
 29:11,12
taxpayers 18:14
taylor 2:8 3:13
 5:17,25 36:5
 36:23
television 18:6
 19:3
tell 15:14,17
 16:13
telling 19:2
 30:25
terms 16:25
 19:13
testimony 17:13
 39:9
thank 3:17 4:2,4
 4:5,20 5:13,22
 6:5,8,17,21
 8:23,24 10:23
 11:23 12:12
 14:17,22 15:1
 15:2 16:14,15
 16:16 19:5,6,7
 19:18 20:11,13
 22:24 24:4
 25:14,14 26:19
 28:6 29:13,14
 32:15,16 33:13
 34:4,5,6,21
 35:25 36:9,11
 37:2,21 38:9
thankful 4:12
thanks 15:21
thats 5:9 6:14
 7:17 10:20
 15:11,13 16:13
 18:11 20:7
 21:5,13 22:2,6
 23:14,22 24:15
 28:13 33:16
theres 7:2 10:17
 13:15 19:9
 24:21 29:23
 32:25

theyre 30:2,22
 31:7
thing 13:15,22
 15:14,16 17:24
 29:10 30:6,24
 31:19
things 10:4
 13:16 19:24
 22:1 23:2
 24:16 32:20
 33:10
think 17:21
 18:11,15,16
 21:2 22:2
 24:21 25:6,10
 28:23 33:20
thought 17:3
thousand 25:2,3
 25:4
three 7:23 28:24
 35:22
thursday 1:19
 3:2,6 4:22
 5:15,23 14:21
 14:23 34:12
 35:10
time 4:6,21 7:1
 7:3,9 10:11,22
 12:8 15:17
 17:14 19:6
 20:18 21:12
 22:24 25:22
 26:25 27:2,24
 28:19 30:3
 32:9 34:9,19
 38:3 39:10
times 21:18
timing 5:3
tired 23:15
today 3:9 6:6
 9:2 15:20 24:1
 30:6
told 14:5 15:22
 21:5 22:9
 31:13
tomorrow 29:6
toney 2:10 3:11
tough 25:12
tow 11:14 13:18
 16:23 17:2
 33:5,6,8
towed 29:2

tower 19:21
towers 11:6
 12:25 13:12,17
 13:17 14:5
towing 9:13 11:2
 11:4 17:10
 25:11 31:25
transcription
 39:12,13
transferable
 12:19
transpired 10:8
 13:15
treatment 26:17
truck 17:10
true 39:13
trust 27:18
truth 15:14,17
 16:13 33:20
try 6:22 20:17
 31:4
trying 7:18 17:8
 22:7 23:15
 26:6 31:19
turn 22:10,12
turns 27:15
tv 15:4
twain 11:6,16
twice 21:17,17
two 6:9 10:6
 11:3 15:19
 16:5,18 24:11
 25:21 27:1
 28:23 30:9,12
twominute 7:9
types 23:1

U

understand 22:23
 24:3 25:8 26:8
 26:12,21
understands 29:7
unfair 13:16
unfortunately
 23:1,23 24:2
ungrateful 17:14
 17:15
union 20:1
unions 19:25
 20:5
unit 8:5
unsolved 25:20

upholding 22:6
upset 30:21
upwards 29:1
urged 6:24

V

vacation 17:8
van 8:6
vehicles 29:2
vein 4:16
verbally 21:6
verify 10:16
vice 3:11
violate 11:21
visited 24:19
visitors 13:10
vocalized 8:19
voice 28:3
vote 19:11 35:22
voted 13:4

W

walk 20:22,24
walking 21:3
want 7:15 9:13
 11:11,20 13:23
 15:11 17:18,19
 18:9,12,12
 20:3,10,18,22
 20:23 21:3,6
 21:22,24,25
 22:3,12,15,18
 22:20 29:7
 32:5,12 33:18
 33:24
wanted 25:12
wants 27:14
warfield 2:6
 3:12 4:25 5:9
 5:24 12:11,12
 19:17,18 32:17
 33:22 34:2
 36:2,20 38:5
washington 3:19
 16:22 19:8,20
 31:25 32:2,8
 33:5
washingtons 32:4
watch 16:3 17:25
watching 8:20
 15:4
way 4:13 13:15

16:9,14 20:1
23:16
wayne 7:19
wearing 21:19
wed 19:10
wednesday 8:3
12:8
week 8:2,3 13:13
13:14 27:5,10
31:23
weekend 12:7
weeks 17:9 23:8
28:24
weighing 13:3
welcome 3:5
10:24 20:11
wendy 1:20 3:23
39:18
went 12:22
west 11:15 32:10
weve 24:14 29:4
whats 26:1
white 2:4 3:4,8
4:2,6,20 5:1
5:11,13,18,22
6:1,5,17,21
7:14 8:24 9:9
9:18,20 10:7
10:15,22,24
11:23 12:1,11
14:17,24 15:2
16:15 19:7
20:13 21:8
22:23 23:13,18
24:4,6 25:14
25:17 26:19
28:6 29:13,15
32:16 34:6
35:25 36:6,9
36:13,18,24
37:2,10,21
38:6,9
widow 30:16
wife 16:23 17:22
wild 24:8,8
25:14,16
willing 8:11,22
willynilly 13:19
wish 15:15 32:4
witness 26:11
witnesses 25:22
26:10 28:12

women 31:8
wondering 9:16
wont 18:8
word 25:10 26:25
words 30:9
work 7:18 15:10
15:20 18:4
26:10 33:23
worked 21:10
working 15:18
16:11 19:25
worry 31:4
worse 27:23
worth 7:21 8:20
wouldnt 6:25
11:18
wreck 16:25
write 33:15
wrong 10:10
wrote 20:18

X

Y

yards 11:15
year 7:21 21:14
21:15 33:7
years 8:17,20
15:11 16:22
17:8 18:23
yesterday 15:4
young 30:10,11
youre 10:24 13:7
14:23 16:6
17:14 18:16
19:5,23 20:6
20:11 25:9
30:6,7 32:13
33:12,25
youth 15:12

Z

zoned 13:2
zoning 13:1 14:2
14:4 24:14,15
25:3

0

00 34:13,17,18

1

1 1:14

10 1:18 3:3 5:23
24:17 34:17
11 34:18
123 15:5
12660 34:16
12701 11:5
1300 1:16 34:13
15 35:2,18
1930 22:21
1964 22:20
1991 14:10

2

2006 7:17,18
2011 23:12 24:15
24:17 25:21
2012 1:19 3:2,7
4:23 5:15,23
35:10
23 18:15
24 1:19 3:2 4:23
35:10
24th 3:6
2611 6:12 35:12
37:7,12,14
262 35:2
268 35:18
29 25:21
29th 26:4
2nd 34:16

3

3 1:18 3:3 34:13
30 21:18 38:10
300 30:19
3136593376 34:19
31st 34:13
328a 1:16 34:14
3505 1:20 39:19
36th 20:21,24
39 1:14

4

4 38:10
44 17:8

5

5 34:16

6

7

70s 9:13

8

800 15:19
8140 11:5
837 6:14 35:14
37:19,23
84 16:22 18:23
8yearold 26:5

9

9 5:15 24:15